City of Geneva, Illinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
2017 Property Inventory Survey

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

2 E State St

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN):

1210230001, 1203483002

HISTORIC NAME: Herrington's Island Park

COMMON NAME: |sland Park

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: Est. 1915

SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: 1916, 1930s

ARCHITECT: Geneva Parks Department, Frank B. Gray

BUILDER: William C. Cummings, Wilson Brothers, WPA, PWA

WILSON BROTHERS: [ AUGUST [ OSCAR [ BOTH

ARCHITECTURAL DATA:

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: Park

OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: |andscape

LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

NUMBER OF STORIES:

[ ] significant

FOUNDATION MATERIAL:

E Contributing

PRIMARY WALL MATERIAL(S):

|:| Non-Contributing — Built After 1987

|:| Non-Contributing — Reversible Alterations

FRONT PORCH:

|:| Non-Contributing — Irreversible Alterations

VISIBLE SIDE PORCH:

HISTORIC DISTRICT LOCATION:

ENTRY DOOR(S):

|:| Central Geneva NRHD

WINDOW MATERIAL:

|:| North Geneva NRHD

WINDOW STYLE:

|E| Local Geneva HD

PRIMARY ROOF FORM:

|:| Not in HD / Individual Historic Landmark

PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL:

NR DISTRICT SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

VISIBLE CHIMNEY:

|:| Contributing

|:| Non-Contributing

CHIMNEY MATERIAL:

|:| Not Applicable / Not in NR District

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:

HPC ACTION:

|:| Demolition Approved:

Other HPC Action:




City of Geneva, Illinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
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ADDITIONAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

2 E State St

BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION:

This site is a unique part of the historic district as it is better
described as a Cultural Landscape, rather than a Historic Structure.
In that sense, it is a large expanse of space which has contained an
evolving collection of structures and art pieces used mostly for
entertainment by Geneva residents.

Discussion around demand for a public park began in 1911. In 1913,
Ralph and Virginia (Herrington) Richards offered to sell the land
which the park still sits on to the city for $2,500. The official purchase
was made in 1914, for the express purchase of creating a
long-lasting public space, especially for children's use.

In about 1915, Geneva City Council established the Parks
Department to handle the park's development. In the 1915-05-12
edition of the Geneva Republican, William E Cummings was
announced as the winning bidder for the cement stairway and bridge
which connected the island to the area around State Street. His bid

SOURCES:

Geneva History Museum; Geneva Republican

CONTRIBUTING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:

AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

CONTRIBUTING LANDSCAPE FEATURES:

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: This site is a unique part of the historic district as it is better described as a Cultural Landscape, rather than a Historic Structure. In that sense, it is a large expanse of space which has contained an evolving collection of structures and art pieces used mostly for entertainment by Geneva residents.

Discussion around demand for a public park began in 1911. In 1913, Ralph and Virginia (Herrington) Richards offered to sell the land which the park still sits on to the city for $2,500. The official purchase was made in 1914, for the express purchase of creating a long-lasting public space, especially for children's use. 

In about 1915, Geneva City Council established the Parks Department to handle the park's development. In the 1915-05-12 edition of the Geneva Republican, William E Cummings was announced as the winning bidder for the cement stairway and bridge which connected the island to the area around State Street. His bid was the lowest by $30 and totaled $1,018. 

Although high water and heavy rain greatly slowed the bridge's construction, playground equipment was erected and grounds were landscaped in time for an informal opening of the park on July 5, 1915. The first set of equipment at the park included two merry-go-rounds, teeter totters, swings, athletic slides, an indoor baseball field, and two temporary bathroom spaces. The 1915-07-07 edition of the Geneva Republican described the opening, saying "it was a tired but happy lot of youngsters that wended their way home just before bed time," and that some adults, including Mayor Joshel, Fred Bennett and Earnest Howell "were all kids for a time."

George Lance had charge of the work of building the first stone wall around the peninsula during the park's early development. Frank Gray designed the field house in 1915 for the park's official dedication that fall. He resided in St Charles. The bid for the field house construction was won by the Wilson Brothers at a cowst of $4450.50, and August Wilson was on site for much of the construction. Charles Caustin and Charles Fargo led the group laying pressed brick for the pavilion.  Park Commissioners, including Mr's Flynn, Hill, and Gorton gave much of their own time, and also donated bushes and other plants for landscaping that were pulled from their own yards. 

In 1916, Colonel George Fabyan donated $300 for a wading pool. It remained until about 1963, at which point it was replaced with a run through shower for children to cool down in.

An Art Deco style bridge in the north replaced the previous wood and steel bridge in 1931. It was constructed by the Wilson brothers. 

WPA and PWA projects during the Great Depression included a new south entry bridge and a stone retaining wall. Much of the PWA projects are described in the 1937-03-12 edition of the Geneva Republican, which included $70,000 of work on the fieldhouse, bridge, retaining wall, road and walks. Workmen from the Transient camp south of Batavia performed all of the stonework, carpentry, and other labor, led by William B. Dunning, camp director. About three acres were added to the park as a result of the infill and wall construction done. Fieldhouse work included plumbing and electric, heating, new porches, railing, and steps, and work to generally seal up the interior and make it usable for all seasons. At this point a World War I memorial was also established and the park was reoriented, with playground equipment moved south, tennis courts eliminated, and much landscaping done.

The Geneva Sesquecentennial sculpture was designed by Sally Rohrer in 1985.

The projects and evolutions described here are just a small amount of those which the park has witnessed. The park's landscape and the objects on it continue to evolve with the needs of the city, but that historic demand for gathering space and outdoor entertainment remains constant.
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